
 

 

 

 
 

 

September 14, 2020 

Board Meeting Packet  
 

 

 



 

 

 

 

          Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

(Virtual Meeting) 

Agua S.U.D. Administration Building 

3120 North Abram Road 

Palmview, Texas 

 

September 14, 2020 

6:00 PM 

AGENDA 

 

A MEETING OF THE AGUA SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT’S BOARD OF DIRECTORS WILL      

BE HELD BY VIDEOCONFERENCE ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 14, 2020 AT 6:00 P.M. AND 

SHALL BE IN ATTENDANCE VIA A COMPUTER, TABLET OR SMARTPHONE AT THE LINK 

SHOWN https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/826804773 OR VIA DIAL IN USING YOUR PHONE 

AT 1 (224) 501-3412 AND ACCESS CODE: 826-804-773. 

THIS AGUA SUD MEETING WILL BE HELD USING VIDEO CONFERENCE SYSTEM AND IS 

AUTHORIZED BY GOVERNOR GREG ABBOTT’S TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF CERTAIN 

ASPECTS  OF  THE  TEXAS  OPEN  MEETINGS  ACT  WHICH  ALLOWS  FOR  A  GOVERNING 

BODY  TO  HOLD  A  “VIRTUAL”  MEETING  SO  AS  TO  AVOID  GATHERING  MEMBERS  

OF THE  PUBLIC  AND/OR  BOARD MEMBERS,  AND  STAFF  IN  A  PHYSICAL  SETTING  

THAT MIGHT CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC HEALTH RISK. THERE WILL BE NO PHYSICAL 

PUBLIC ACESS TO THIS MEETING, HOWEVER, THERE WILL BE REAL TIME VIRTUAL 

ACCESS. PLEASE SEE OPEN MEETING LAWS SUBJECT TO TEMPORARY SUSPENSION.  

PUBLIC  COMMENTS  WILL  ONLY  BE  ACCEPTED  IN  WRITING  NO  LATER  THAN  

THIRTY (30) MINUTES IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING BY SENDING THEM TO CYNTHIA 

VILLARREAL AT cynthiav@aguasud.com.   IN THE BODY OF THE EMAIL PLEASE INCLUDE 

DATE, NAME, ADDRESS, PHONE NUMBER, AGENDA ITEM # IF APPLICABLE OR SUBJECT 

OF DISCUSSION, AND COMMENTS.  

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING MATTERS: 

 

1. Call to Order 

a. Roll Call 

b. Public Comments (Refer to paragraph above regarding public comments; email method) 

2. Minutes  

a. Approval of minutes for the June 1, 2020 Agua Board Meeting 

Agua Special Utility District 
P. O. Box 4379 Mission, Texas  78573-0075 

(956) 585-2459  FAX (956) 585-1516 

 

Board of Directors 

Lloyd Loya, President 

Cesar Rodríguez, Jr., Vice-President 

Adolfo Arriaga, Secretary 

Ivan Sandoval, Treasurer 

Franco Lopez, Director  

Esequiel Ortiz, Jr., Director  

Homero Tijerina, Director 

 

 
 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/
mailto:cynthiav@aguasud.com


 

 

3. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to Liberty Landing Opportunity Zone Fund, LLC, for the cost 

related to water service for Liberty Landing Subdivision. 

4. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water & sewer service to be submitted to Mrs. Lourdes Montemayor, for the cost related to 

water & sewer service for Divina Misericordia Subdivision. 

5. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to Mr. Julio Cerda, for the cost related to water service for 

Matermi Subdivision. 

6. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to CIL Fresh Properties LLC, for the cost related to water service 

for Camou Subdivision. 

7. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water & sewer service to be submitted to GarVic Properties LP, for the cost related to water & 

sewer service for El Pinto Estates Phase 1 Subdivision. 

8. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to Carlos Leal Jr., for the cost related to water service for Las 

Comadres No. 8 Subdivision. 

9. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to Everardo Villarreal & Rigoberto Villarreal, for the cost related 

to water service for Western Oak Subdivision. 

10. Discussion and possible action on a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to Amador & Graciela Hernandez, for the cost related to water 

service for Karolina Ysabella Subdivision. 

11. Discussion and possible action on award of bid to lowest most responsible bidder for the 

purchase of Liquid Chlorine Dioxide (Sodium Chlorite) for Water Treatment Plant Chemicals. 

12. Discussion and possible action on approval of the Substantial completion for L & G 

Construction (Western & Eastern portion) for Palmview Wastewater Collection System Phase 

I, Group B&F (Project 1).  

13. Discussion and possible action on approval of the Substantial completion for Jimmy Closner 

for Palmview Wastewater Collection System Phase 1, Lift Stations A2, F, G & G7 (Project 3). 

14.  Discussion and possible action on approval of Change Order #6 for SureTec., Palmview 

Wastewater Collection System Phase 1, Group A&G (Project 2).  



 

 

15. Discussion and possible action on approval of Change Order No. 10 with L & G Construction 

for Palmview Wastewater Collection System Phase I, Group B&F (Project 1) subject to Texas 

Water Development Board approval. 

16. Discussion and possible action on approval to reduce the retainage for Mor-Wil for Palmview 

Wastewater Collection System Phase 1, Main Lift Station and Forcemain Conveyance System 

(Project 4) subject to Texas Water Development Board approval. 

17. Discussion and possible action on agreement with M2 Engineering for Mile 3 Rd. Waterline 

Improvements. 

18. Discussion and possible action on agreement with M2 Engineering for Liberty Rd. Waterline 

Improvements. 

19. Discussion and possible action authorizing General Manager to advertise for Mile 3 Rd. 

Waterline Improvements. 

20. Discussion and possible action authorizing General Manager to advertise for Liberty Rd. 

Waterline Improvements. 

21. Discussion and possible action authorizing General Manager to advertise for FM 492 Water 

Recovery and Waste Process Improvement (Water Saver). 

22. Discussion and possible action on approval of contract agreement for election services with 

Hidalgo County Elections Administrator.  

23. General Manager’s Report: 

a. July Financials  

b. August Financials  

c. TWDB Palmview Sanitary Sewer Improvements 

d. NAD Bank Technical Assistance Agreement (Sewer Hook-ups) 

e. Other Business   

24. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 

Pursuant to Texas Open Meetings Act and Texas Gov. Code Section 551.001 Consultation with 

Attorney, 551.072 Regarding Real Property, 551.073 Prospective Gift, 551.074 Personnel 

Matters and 551.076 Security. 

a. TWDB Palmview Sanitary Sewer Improvements Project 

25. Discussion and possible action regarding item(s) discussed in Executive Session. 

26. Adjournment.  

 



 

 

Notice of Regular Meeting of the 

Agua Special Utility District Board of Directors 
 

 
Notice is hereby given that on the 14th day of September, 2020 the Board of Directors of Agua Special 

Utility District will hold a regular meeting at 6:00 p.m. at the Agua Administration Building, 3120 North 

Abram Rd., Mission, Texas 78572. The subjects to be discussed are listed on the agenda, which is attached 

to and made part of this notice. 

 
If, during the course of the meeting  covered by this Notice, the Board of Directors should determine 

that  a closed  or executive  meeting  or session  of the Board  is required,  then  such  closed  or 

executive meeting or session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code 

Section 551.001 et seq., will be held by the Board at the date, hour and place given in this Notice or as 

soon after the commencement  of the meeting covered by this Notice as the Board may conveniently  

meet in such closed  or executive meeting  or session  concerning  any and all purposed permitted by 

the Act, including, but not limited to the following sections and purposes. 

 

Texas Government Code Section: 

551.071 Consultation with Attorney. 

551.072 Deliberation regarding real property. 

551.073 Deliberation regarding prospective gifts. 

551.074 Personnel Matters. 

551.076 Deliberation regarding security devices or security audits. 

551.0785 Deliberation involving medical or psychiatric records of individuals. 

551.084 Investigation; exclusion of witness from hearing. 

551.087 Deliberation regarding economic development negotiation. 

551.088 Deliberation regarding test item. 
 
Should  any final  action,  final  decision,  or  final  vote  be required  in  the  opinion  of  the  Board of 

Directors  with regard to any matter  considered  in such closed  or executive  meeting  or session, 

then the final action, final decision, or final vote shall be either: 

 

(a)      in the open meeting covered by the Notice upon the reconvening of the public meeting; or 

(b) at a subsequent public meeting of the Board of Directors upon notice thereof; as the Board 

shall determine. 

 

 On this the 11th day of September, 2020 was posted on the Agua SUD official website and in a 

place convenient to the public in the bulletin board at Agua Special Utility District, 3120 North Abram 

Rd. Palmview, Texas 78572 at 4:00 p.m. on said date.  

 

 

________/s/______________________ 

       Cynthia Villarreal, Executive Assistant  



 

 

 

     CALL TO ORDER 

 

A. ROLL CALL  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

 



 
 
 

 

ITEM 2. 
 



1 

 

AGUA SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 

Agua SUD Administration Building 

3120 North Abram Road 

Palmview, Texas 

 

6:00 p.m., June 1, 2020  

 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

1. The meeting was called to order by Mr. Lloyd Loya at 6:00 p.m., June 1, 2020, at which time 

Mr. Loya acknowledged the presence of the following Elected Members of the Board of the 

Agua SUD:   

 

    Directors Present:  

Mr. Lloyd Loya  

Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. 

Mr. Adolfo Arriaga 

Mr. Esequiel Ortiz, Jr. 

Mr. Homero Tijerina  

 

Directors Absent: 

Mr. Ivan Sandoval 

Mr. Franco Lopez 

 

A quorum of the members of the Agua SUD being present, the meeting was duly convened. 

Invocation was presented by Mr. Albert Alonzo, Asset Manager.  

 

Public Comment: None  

 

2. The Board of Directors reviewed and adopted minutes of the March 23, 2020 Agua Special 

Board Meeting. The motion was made by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. 

Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board.  

3. The Board of Directors approved to move the July and August regular board meetings from 

July 6, 2020 to July 13, 2020 and from August 3, 2020 to August 10, 2020. The motion was 

made by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously 

approved by the Board.  

4. The Board of Directors approved a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to Mrs. Florangel Santos, for the cost related to water service for 

Salinas Garza Subdivision. The motion was made by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded 

by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board. 



2 

 

5. The Board of Directors approved a Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30-year letter for 

water service to be submitted to IDEA Public Schools, for the cost related to water service for 

IDEA Public School La Joya Subdivision. The motion was made by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and 

seconded by Mr. Homer Tijerina and was unanimously approved by the Board. 

6. The Board of Directors approved authorizing General Manager to negotiate the extension of 

contract for Water Treatment Chemicals of Liquid Chlorine Gas. The motion was made by Mr. 

Homero Tijerina and seconded by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and was unanimously approved by 

the Board. 

7. The Board of Directors approved authorizing General Manager to advertise for competitive 

bids on the purchase of Water Treatment Chemicals to include Liquid Chlorine Gas and 

Chlorine Dioxide (Sodium Chlorite). The motion was made by Mr. Homero Tijerina and 

seconded by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board. 

8. The Board of Directors approved renewal of contract for an additional year with Mobile 1 

Truck Repair for Auto Mechanic Services for District vehicles as written in current contract 

and selected Reyna’s Diesel Services as an additional mechanic for Auto Mechanics Services 

as recommended by Albert Alonzo, Asset Manager. The motion was made by Mr. Cesar 

Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Homer Tijerina and was unanimously approved by the 

Board. 

9. The Board of Directors approved renewal of contract for an additional year with Pete’s Muffler 

Shop for Fix Flat Services for District vehicles as written in current contract and as 

recommended by Albert Alonzo, Asset Manager. The motion was made by Mr. Cesar 

Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Homer Tijerina and was unanimously approved by the 

Board. 

10. The Board of Directors approved renewal of contract for an additional year with Fiesta Lube 

Express for Oil Change/P.M. Services (Lube Services) for District vehicles as written in 

current contract and as recommended by Albert Alonzo, Asset Manager. The motion was made 

by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Homer Tijerina and was unanimously 

approved by the Board. 

11. The Board of Directors approved a one-year contract renewal with Pathfinders. The motion 

was made by Mr. Homer Tijerina and seconded by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and was 

unanimously approved by the Board. 

12. The Board of Directors received a presentation by Mr. David Gonzalez, PFM Financial 

Advisor on Agua Special Utility District Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Refunding 

Bonds, Series 2020. The Board of Directors approved a Resolution authorizing the issuance of 

Agua Special Utility District Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds, 

Series 2020, and authorized other matters related to the foregoing financing. The motion was 

made by Mr. Esequiel Ortiz, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and was 

unanimously approved by the Board. 

13. The Board of Directors approved the increase of solid waste (trash) collection fees for the City 

of Sullivan City as requested by City of Sullivan City. The motion was made by Mr. Cesar 



3 

 

Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the 

Board. 

14. The Board of Directors approved to accept recommendation by S & B Infrastructure to reject 

bids for Agua SUD’s Palmview Wastewater Collection System, Phase I, Group A&G (Line 

G7-a1 and Line A1-O) due to following: not receiving the schedule of value from the 

contractor and the amount was doubled from the original bid value. S&B also recommended 

to request quotes from current contractors through a change order if possible. The motion was 

made by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and seconded by Mr. Homer Tijerina and was unanimously 

approved by the Board.  

15. The Board of Directors approved Change Order No. 17 with Mor-Wil for Palmview 

Wastewater Collection System, Phase 1, Main Lift Station and Forcemain Conveyance System 

(Project 4). The motion was made by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. Adolfo 

Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board. 

16. The Board of Directors approved agreement with TxDOT for waterline relocation due to the 

La Joya bypass. The motion was made by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and seconded by Mr. 

Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board. 

17. The Board of Directors received a report from the General Manager on operations and finance 

including: 

a. April Financials  

b. 1st Quarter Investment Report 

c. TWDB Palmview Sanitary Sewer Improvements  

d. NadBank Technical Assistance Agreement (Sewer Hook-ups) 

e. General Manager gave a brief update on the Press Conference with 

Congressman Henry Cuellar regarding the Sewer Hook Up Project.  

  

18. The Board of Directors recessed into an Executive (closed) meeting at 6:43 p.m. under Texas 

Gov. Code Section 551.001 Consultation with Attorney, 551.072 Regarding Real Property, 

551.073 Prospective Gift, 551.074 Personnel Matters and 551.076 Security. The motion was 

made by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and seconded by Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. and was unanimously 

approved by the Board.  

  

ITEM 18. a. TWDB Palmview Sanitary Sewer Improvements Project. 

ITEM 18. b. Discussion on Agua SUD 2020 Board Election 

 

At 7:21 p.m., The Board moved to reconvene in open session and no action was taken in executive 

session. The motion was made by Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and seconded by Mr. Esequiel Ortiz, Jr. and 

was unanimously approved by the Board.  

 

 



4 

 

 

19. The Board of Directors took no action in open session regarding item(s) discussed in executive 

session for the following: 

 

ITEM 18.a. The Board of Directors took no action on TWDB Palmview Sanitary Sewer 

Improvements Project. 

ITEM 18b. The Board of Directors authorized General Manager and Legal to proceed 

as discussed in executive session regarding Agua SUD 2020 Board 

Election. The motion was made by Mr. Esequiel Ortiz, Jr. and seconded by 

Mr. Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board. 

 

 

At 7:22 p.m., Mr. Cesar Rodríguez, Jr. moved for adjournment. Motion was seconded by Mr. 

Adolfo Arriaga and was unanimously approved by the Board.  

 

 

Approved, the ____ of September, 2020   

 

        

Lloyd Loya, President, Agua SUD   

 

Attested by: 

 

       

Adolfo Arriaga, Secretary, Agua SUD 



 
 
 

 

ITEM 3. 
 



 Agua Special Utility 
District 

 

Memo 

To:   Jose E. “Eddie” Saenz, General Manager 

 

 

Mr. Saenz,  

 

 Pamela Perez 
 Project Manager 
 

From: Pamela Perez, Project Manager 

Cc:  Cynthia Villarreal, Executive Assistant  

Date:  September 11, 2020 

Re:  Liberty Landing Subdivision  

Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30 Year Letter   

The developer for Liberty Landing Subdivision, Liberty Landing Opportunity Zone Fund, LLC, has 
complied with Agua SUD requirements in order to proceed with NSSA contract. Their information 

was been submitted to the District’s Attorney and the NSSA and 30-year letter are being prepare. 

Please add this item to the September 14, 2020 agenda for approval.  



1 

 

NON-STANDARD SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

 This Non-Standard Service Agreement (Agreement) is made and entered into by and 

between Agua Special Utility District (“the SUD”), a special utility district created and operating 

under Chapter 7201 of the District Local Laws Code and under Chapter 65 of the Texas Water 

Code, and Liberty Landing Opportunity Zone Fund, LLC (APPLICANT) located in Hidalgo 

County, Texas. 

RECITALS 

 This Agreement is intended to satisfy the requirements of the Texas Water Development 

Board’s Economically Distressed Areas Program Model Subdivision Rules, as described in 31 

Texas Administrative Code §364.32. 

 The SUD is a utility which supplies drinking water in the area for which water is sought 

by APPLICANT and is governed by a Board of Directors.  APPLICANT is the owner of tracts of 

land in Hidalgo County, Texas, that have been proposed to be divided into a subdivision known 

as Liberty Landing Subdivision (“Subdivision” or “Project”), which will consists of a 11.340 

acre tract of land in which is to develop One hundred and eighty-two (182) Multi-family 

apartments and will consist of one (1) Lot of land owned by the APPLICANT.    

 The SUD and APPLICANT desire to enter into an agreement at the request of 

APPLICANT to address water service from the SUD to APPLICANT.  APPLICANT intends to 

build the Subdivision, which is within the SUD’s Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

(CCN).  APPLICANT has requested service and the SUD has investigated service requirements 

for APPLICANT.  The SUD, through its consulting engineer, has prepared a Service 

Investigation Report (SIR) dated August 10, 2020.  The SIR is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein for all purposes.  This Agreement sets forth the requirements for the design, bidding, 



2 

 

construction and inspection of facilities and the acquisition of easements necessary to provide 

water to APPLICANT.   

 In consideration of the foregoing, of the mutual benefits, covenants and agreements 

expressed herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the SUD and APPLICANT agree as follows: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

1.01. The Project includes all water pipes, lines, meters, valves, facilities, easements and other 

infrastructure (water infrastructure and facilities) to provide water service to 

APPLICANT.  APPLICANT will construct at its cost all water infrastructure and 

facilities and obtain all easements that are required and reasonably necessary to serve the 

Project, including, but not limited to, the facilities and easements described in Sections 1 

and 6 of the SIR.  APPLICANT will pay the cost of construction for improvements to the 

SUD’s production, treatment and storage facilities necessary to provide service to 

APPLICANT’S Subdivision. 

1.02. Liberty Landing Apartments is a 182-unit multi-family subdivision being 11.340 acre 

tract of land out of lots 214, 215, 216, 217, 224, and 225, Homeville Association 

Subdivision "A", Recorded in Volume 0, Page 24 Map records of the Office of the 

County Clerk of Hidalgo County, Texas and described by Warranty Deed with vendor's 

lien recorded under County Document number 1295638.  As part of the submittal 

process, please provide a Legal description and deed of the property.  The Project will be 

developed as a Multi-family development consisting of 182 units [adding 91 living unit 

equivalents (LUEs)].  APPLICANT is required to comply with all requirements set out in 

Section 4 of the SIR.  APPLICANT shall connect at two (2) locations to provide a looped 



3 

 

system.  The first at the Northeast Corner of Liberty Rd. and Diamond Ave., which will 

extend to the North along the East side of Liberty Rd. via a 15ft. Agua SUD exclusive 

Easement, and then enter the property.  The second will connect at the existing 8-inch 

waterline that runs East/West along the North side of Diamond Ave., which will enter the 

property near the proposed driveway entrance along Diamond Ave.  The developer is 

proposing two (2) 6-inch master meters and one (1) 2-inch irrigation meter. The waterline 

located inside of the property will be considered a private line.  

1.03 APPLICANT is required to acquire a Texas Department of Transportation utility permit 

via the Department’s Utility Installation Review (UIR) webpage.  All submittals to be 

reviewed and approved by the Department shall be routed through the SUD’s UIR 

account, and APPLICANT is responsible for requesting a UIR user account from the 

SUD’s district management.   

1.04 The development is located along the East side of Liberty Blvd., approximately four 

hundred (400) North of the intersection made by Diamond Ave. and Liberty Blvd. in the 

City of Peñitas, Texas.   

1.05 APPLICANT is located within the City of Peñitas Sanitary Sewer CCN, and will be 

connecting to their sanitary sewer collection system in accordance with the Texas 

Commission on Environment Quality (TCEQ).   

DESIGN OF FACILITIES 

2.01. APPLICANT’S engineer will prepare the design, construction plans and specifications, 

and supporting documentation for the water infrastructure and facilities associated with 

the Project in consultation and coordination with the SUD’s engineer, and subject to the 

SUD’s review and approval.  APPLICANT will provide the SUD three sets of 



4 

 

preliminary design plans.  The SUD will review and comment on the plans and 

APPLICANT will amend the plans at the request and to the satisfaction of the SUD.  All 

improvements shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the SUD and TCEQ 

standards.  All facilities and infrastructure will comply with TCEQ rules and regulations.  

No construction shall commence until the SUD has reviewed and approved plans. 

2.02. APPLICANT will use the plans approved by the SUD to develop construction-ready 

plans which will be submitted to the SUD for final review, revision and approval.  Once 

the preliminary plans have been reviewed and approved, APPLICANT will provide four 

sets of construction-ready plans. 

2.03. If it is necessary for the SUD to upgrade or add to its existing production, treatment, 

storage or transmission facilities to serve the Project, the SUD’s engineers will be 

responsible for the design of such improvements.  Additional improvements to the 

existing system that are not APPLICANT’S obligation under this Agreement will be 

made by the SUD. 

2.04. If the APPLICANT’S Project is to be built within a subdivision, the subdivision’s final 

plat must be approved by all regulatory authorities having jurisdiction over the 

subdivision, and the SUD must be presented or have been presented with a certificate as 

required by Texas Local Government Code §§ 212.012 or 232.029 before the SUD may 

serve or connect the Project with water. 

BIDS FOR CONSTRUCTION 

3.01. For facilities to be constructed by the APPLICANT, to the extent required by and in 

accordance with applicable law, APPLICANT shall advertise for bids for construction of 

the proposed water infrastructure and facilities in consultation with the SUD engineer.  



5 

 

On request of the APPLICANT and upon agreement by the SUD in its sole discretion, the 

SUD’s engineer shall advertise for bids for construction of any facilities to be constructed 

by the SUD with funds provided by APPLICANT.  APPLICANT’S engineer may make 

recommendations to the SUD engineers as to the lowest and best qualified bidder.  The 

SUD may reject any and all bids but generally will accept the lowest and best qualified 

bid in accordance with the following criteria: 

 a. The contractor shall provide an adequate bid bond under terms acceptable to the 

SUD; 

 b. The contractor shall secure adequate performance and payment bonding for the 

project under terms acceptable to the SUD; 

 c. The contractor shall supply favorable references acceptable to the SUD;  

 d. The contractor shall qualify with the SUD as competent to complete the work; 

and 

 e. The contractor shall provide adequate certificates of insurance as required by the 

SUD. 

3.02. For facilities to be constructed by the APPLICANT, the contract for construction shall be 

subject to review and approval by the SUD. 

EASEMENTS, LICENSES, AND OTHER AUTHORIZATIONS 

4.01. The water facilities and infrastructure shall be located in existing SUD easements or 

private rights-of-way or in private easements or rights-of-way acquired by APPLICANT 

in locations acceptable and approved by the SUD.  Specific easements APPLICANT is 

required to provide to the SUD are described in Paragraph 6 of the SIR. 



6 

 

4.02. The APPLICANT shall bear the cost of obtaining right-of-way easements necessary to 

connect the APPLICANT’S Project to the SUD’s facilities, whether or not the easements 

are located within the APPLICANT’S Project.  If the SUD determines that utility 

easements or facility sites outside the APPLICANT’S Project are required, the 

APPLICANT shall secure easements or title to facility sites on behalf of the SUD. 

4.03. APPLICANT shall bear the cost of acquiring all easements and clearing and chipping the 

entire width of all easements. 

4.04. All rights-of-way and easements and property titles shall be researched, validated and 

filed at the expense of APPLICANT.   

4.05. All facilities required to be installed in public rights-of-way on behalf of the SUD, due to 

inability to secure private right-of-way easements, shall be subject to costs equal to the 

original cost of facility installation for those facilities in public rights-of-way, plus the 

estimated cost of future relocation to private rights-of-way.  The costs as determined by 

the SUD under this paragraph must be paid by APPLICANT to the SUD before the SUD 

may serve or connect the Project with water. 

4.06. The SUD shall require exclusive dedicated right-of-way easements on the 

APPLICANT’S property or within APPLICANT’S Project (as required by the size of the 

planned facilities and as determined by the SUD) and title to property required for such 

on-site facilities. In locations where the commissioner’s court or municipal governing 

body has approved specific utility location assignments within Public Utility Easement 

(PUE), water lines internal to the APPLICANT’S Project shall be installed within the 

PUE at the location assigned for utility service. Where specific utility location 

assignments are not applicable, every easement internal to the APPLICANT’S Project 



7 

 

shall have a minimum width of 15 feet. All water line easements within a subdivision 

shall be shown on the final recorded plat of the subdivision. 

4.07 APPLICANT shall obtain in the name of the SUD all easements, licenses, permits, or 

other rights or authorizations as may be required to cross any road right-of-way, railroad 

rights-of-way, and irrigation canals. 

CONSTRUCTION 

5.01. APPLICANT will schedule a preconstruction meeting with participation by the SUD at 

least two (2) days before the start of construction. 

5.02. All road work shall be performed pursuant to applicable state, county or municipal 

standards and shall be completed prior to water facility and infrastructure construction to 

avoid future problems resulting from road right-of-way completion and excavation.  

Subject to approval of the requisite authority, road sleeves may be installed prior to road 

construction to avoid road damage during construction of facilities. 

5.03. Construction plans and specifications shall be strictly followed, but the SUD reserves the 

right to change and order any specifications due to unforeseen circumstances to better 

facilitate operation of the water line or SUD facilities.  All change and order amounts 

shall be charged to APPLICANT. 

5.04. APPLICANT shall bear all costs and expenses for land acquisition, construction, water 

lines, facilities and infrastructure including, but not limited to, engineering fees, 

permitting fees and construction costs. 

5.05. The SUD shall, at the expense of APPLICANT, inspect the facilities to ensure the SUD’s 

standards are achieved. 



8 

 

5.06. APPLICANT shall provide sufficient notice to the SUD to allow the SUD to observe 

critical elements of construction: 

 a. water line and facility installation; 

 b. connection to existing mains; 

 c. pressure testing; and 

 d. testing of all facilities. 

 If APPLICANT fails to comply with the above, the SUD may require APPLICANT to 

have the construction facilities uncovered and exposed for the SUD’s inspection.  In any event, 

the integrity of the facilities is the responsibility of APPLICANT. 

APPROVAL BY GOVERNMENTAL BODY 

6.01. APPLICANT shall obtain any required approvals for construction of the facilities from 

the following: 

 a. Hidalgo County; 

 b. governing body of any city within whose corporate limits or ETJ the water lines 

are located; 

 c. United States Fish and Wildlife Service and/or Texas Parks and Wildlife 

Department; 

 d. Texas Historical Commission; and 

 e. any other political subdivision or governmental agency whose approval will be 

required before the SUD can provide service to APPLICANT. 

6.02. APPLICANT recognizes that the SUD must comply with United States Department of 

Agriculture-Rural Development, Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, and 



9 

 

Texas Water Development Board rules and regulations as promulgated from time to time 

as those rules apply to the service, rates and capacity addition of the SUD. 

INSPECTION AND DEDICATION 

7.01. Upon completion of all facilities and other appurtenances constructed for the provision of 

water service to the Project, the water infrastructure and facilities shall be inspected and 

certified by the SUD’s engineer.  SUD inspection will be to ensure water infrastructure 

and facilities are built in accordance with design plans and specifications.  The costs for 

the SUD’s inspection will be borne by APPLICANT. 

7.02. APPLICANT will provide the SUD two sets of as-built plans and receipts of all costs.  

APPLICANT will secure a warranty from the construction contractor for one year 

guarantee of workmanship and serviceability.  

7.03. Upon completion of the water facilities and infrastructure and certification by the SUD’s 

engineer, all infrastructure, facilities, permits, as built drawings, easements, real property 

and other property acquired in the design and construction of the water facilities and 

infrastructure shall be dedicated to and deemed to be owned by the SUD and title and 

ownership shall automatically vest in the SUD.  Within ten (10) days after certification 

by the SUD’s engineer of the completion of the infrastructure and facilities in accordance 

with state law, the rules of the SUD, and this Agreement, APPLICANT shall confirm or 

verify such ownership, conveyance, and title by the execution and delivery of appropriate 

bills of sale, transfer, assignment, or other instruments of conveyance in form acceptable 

to the SUD, free and clear of all liens and encumbrances. 

7.04. After ownership and title of the water infrastructure vests in the SUD as set forth above, 

all responsibility for repair and maintenance shall be born by the SUD, provided that the 



10 

 

SUD shall not, by this Agreement, waive or otherwise diminish its rights and remedies 

under any performance bond, warranty or other guarantee of performance regarding 

infrastructure provided under this Agreement. 

WATER SERVICE 

8.01. Upon determination by the SUD and certified by the SUD’s engineer that the water line 

and all water infrastructure and facilities have been properly constructed, installed and 

cleared for service in accordance with approved plans and specifications, potable water 

service will be initiated by the SUD provided APPLICANT has performed and fulfilled 

all its obligations imposed upon APPLICANT under the terms of this Agreement, 

relevant laws, rules, regulations and ordinances, including but not limited to: 

 a. APPLICANT has paid all fees and amounts owed to the SUD under this 

Agreement; 

b. All water infrastructure improvements described herein have been completed 

onsite of the property or Project in accordance with the construction standards of 

the SUD and the plans and specifications approved by the SUD’s engineers and 

the SUD has inspected and approved the facilities; 

c. All water infrastructure improvements described herein that are located offsite of 

the property or Project that were to be constructed by APPLICANT have been 

completed in accordance with the construction standards of the SUD and the plans 

and specifications approved by the SUD’s engineers and the SUD has inspected 

and approved the facilities; 



11 

 

d. All water infrastructure improvements described herein that are located offsite of 

the property or Project that were to be constructed by the SUD have been 

completed; 

e. All water infrastructure improvements described herein, and which have been 

inspected and approved by the SUD, have been dedicated to and accepted by the 

SUD;  

 f. APPLICANT has submitted documentation of a satisfactory bacteriological test; 

and 

 g. Subdivision plat approval, if required, has been obtained by APPLICANT, and 

the SUD has been presented with a certificate as required by Texas Local 

Government Code §§ 212.012 or 232.029. 

8.02. Based upon the daily anticipated water flow required for the Subdivision as set out in the 

SIR, the SUD has or will have the ability to provide the anticipated water flow for at least 

thirty (30) years and will provide such water flow.  The SUD shall sell and deliver water 

service to APPLICANT for thirty (30) years after the plat of the Subdivision has been 

recorded and the Subdivision’s water distribution system has been connected to the 

SUD’s water supply system.  APPLICANT shall purchase, receive, and/or reserve service 

from the SUD in accordance and in compliance with the bylaws and Rules of the SUD as 

amended from time to time by the Board of Directors of the SUD.   

8.03. The APPLICANT shall pay the SUD for service as determined by the rules and upon the 

terms and conditions set forth therein, a copy of which has been provided as an 

information packet, for which APPLICANT acknowledges receipt by execution of this 

Agreement. 



12 

 

8.04. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to discontinue service of APPLICANT 

for non-compliance with any policy or for failure to pay any utility fees or charges as 

required by the SUD’s published rates, fees, and condition of service. 

8.05. All water shall be metered by a 2-inch meter to be furnished and installed by the SUD.  

The meter is for the sole use of APPLICANT and is to provide service to only four 

dwellings proposed within the two new buildings.  Extension of pipe(s) to transfer utility 

service from one property to another, to share, resell, or sub-meter water to any other 

persons, dwellings, businesses, or property, etc., is prohibited. 

8.06. The SUD shall have the right to locate a water service meter and the pipe necessary to 

connect the meter on APPLICANT’S property at a point to be chosen by the SUD, and 

shall have access to its property and equipment located upon APPLICANT’S premises at 

all reasonable and necessary times for any purpose connected with or in the furtherance 

of its business operations, and upon discontinuance of service the SUD shall have the 

right to remove any of its equipment from the APPLICANT’S property.  APPLICANT 

will install, at its own expense, any necessary service lines from the SUD’s facilities and 

equipment to the point of use including any APPLICANT service isolation valves, 

backflow prevention devices, clean-outs, and equipment as may be specified by the SUD.  

The SUD shall also have access to APPLICANT’S property for the purpose of inspecting 

for possible cross-connections, potential contamination hazards, and illegal lead 

materials. 

8.07. The SUD is responsible for protecting the drinking water supply from contamination or 

pollution which could result from improper practices.  This Agreement serves as notice to 

APPLICANT of its restrictions which are in place to provide this protection.  The SUD 



13 

 

shall enforce these restrictions to ensure the public health and welfare.  The following 

undesirable practices are prohibited by state regulations: 

 a. No direct connection between the public drinking water supply and a potential 

source of contamination is permitted.  Potential sources of contamination shall be 

isolated from the public system by an air gap or an appropriate backflow 

prevention assembly in accordance with state regulations. 

 b. No cross-connection between the public drinking water supply and a private water 

system is permitted.  These potential threats to the public drinking water supply 

shall be eliminated at the service connection by the proper installation of an air 

gap or a reduced pressure-zone backflow prevention assembly and a service 

agreement must be maintained at APPLICANT’S cost for annual inspection and 

testing by a backflow prevention device tester. 

 c. No connection which allows condensing, cooling, or industrial process water to 

be returned to the public drinking water supply is permitted. 

 d. No pipe or pipe fitting which contains more than 8% lead may be used for the 

installation or repair of plumbing at any connection which provides water for 

human consumption. 

 e. No solder or flux which contains more than 0.2% lead may be used for the 

installation or repair of plumbing at any connection which provides water for 

human consumption. 

8.08. The SUD shall maintain a copy of this Agreement as long as APPLICANT is connected 

to the public water system.  APPLICANT shall allow its property to be inspected for 

possible cross-connections, potential contamination hazards, and illegal lead materials.  



14 

 

These inspections shall be conducted by the SUD or its designated agent prior to 

initiating service and periodically thereafter.  The inspections shall be conducted during 

the SUD’s normal business hours. 

8.09. The SUD shall notify APPLICANT in writing of any cross-connections or other 

undesirable practices which have been identified during the initial or subsequent 

inspection.  APPLICANT shall immediately correct any undesirable practice on its 

premises.  APPLICANT shall, at its expense, properly install, test, and maintain any 

backflow prevention device required by the SUD.  Copies of all testing and maintenance 

records shall be provided to the SUD as required.  Failure to comply with the terms of 

this Agreement shall cause the SUD either to terminate service or properly install, test, 

and maintain an appropriate backflow prevention device at the service connection.  Any 

expenses associated with the enforcement of this Agreement shall be billed to and paid by 

APPLICANT. 

8.10. In the event the total water supply is insufficient to meet all of the SUD’s customers, or in 

the event there is a shortage of water, the SUD may initiate the its drought contingency 

plan as specified in the SUD’s rules.  By execution of this Agreement, APPLICANT 

hereby agrees that it shall comply with the terms of said program. 

8.11. By execution hereof, APPLICANT shall guarantee payment of all other rates, fees, and 

charges done on any account for which APPLICANT receives service from the SUD.  

Said guarantee shall pledge any and all of APPLICANT’S deposit fees against any 

balance due the SUD.  Liquidation of said deposit fees shall give rise to discontinuance of 

service under the terms and conditions of the SUD’s rules. 

 



15 

 

FEES 

9.01. The following fees shall be paid on or before the execution of this Agreement by 

APPLICANT.  These fees represent the cost of the SIR, which fee has been paid, and the 

total costs of water meters, water rights acquisition fees, and all other fees associated with 

connecting the individual lots in the Subdivision to the SUD’s water supply system, all of 

which are due at the time of execution of this Agreement.   

 a. Service Investigation Fee:  $1,000.00 which is an amount sufficient to cover all 

administrative, legal and engineering fees associated with investigation of the 

SUD’s ability to deliver service to APPLICANT, including but not limited to all 

actions undertaken by the SUD under this Agreement; 

b. Service Inspection Fee:  $60.00, which is $20.00 for each inspection fee.  

 c. Irrigation Meter Installation Fee:  $1,500.00, which is $1,500.00 per water meter, 

an amount sufficient to cover cost and installation of a 2-inch meter, multiplied by 

1 connection; 

 d. Domestic Meter Installation Fee: $3,344.80, which is $1,672.40 per water meter, 

an amount sufficient to cover and installation of a 6-inch meter, multiplied by 2 

connections.  

 e. Water Rights Acquisition Fee:  $172,900.00, which is $1,900.00 (per LUE meter 

rate) multiplied by 91 LUEs; 

 f. Impact Fee:  $13,650.00, which is $150.00 multiplied 91 LUEs;  

 g. Customer Deposit:  $150.00, which is $50.00 each Three (3) water meters;  



16 

 

 h. Construction Inspection Fee:  5% of total cost of construction which covers the 

labor costs associated with the inspection of the APPLICANT-constructed 

facilities; 

 i. Any construction and relocation costs determined pursuant to paragraph 4.05 of 

this Agreement. 

9.02. APPLICANT agrees to pay a monthly charge for metered water service, which includes a 

base rate and a volumetric rate as specified in the SUD’s Rules, until water 

service is transferred to a new customer in accordance with the SUD’s Rules.  

APPLICANT understands that these monthly rates will be periodically revised by 

the SUD. 

DEFAULT 

10.01. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no party shall be deemed to be in 

default hereunder until the passage of thirty (30) business days after receipt by such party 

of notice of default from the other party.  Upon the passage of thirty (30) working days 

without cure of the default, such party shall be deemed to have defaulted for purposes of 

this Agreement. 

FORCE MAJEURE 

11.01. The term "force majeure" as employed herein shall mean and refer to acts of God; strikes, 

lockouts, or other industrial disturbances: acts of public enemies, orders of any kind of the 

government of the United States, the State of Texas or any civil or military authority; 

insurrections; riots; epidemic; landslides; lightning; earthquakes; fires; hurricanes; storms; 

floods; washouts; droughts; arrests; restraint of government and people; civil disturbances; 

explosions; breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines, or canals; or other causes not 

reasonably within the control of the party claiming such inability. 



17 

 

11.02. If, by reason of force majeure, any party hereto shall be rendered wholly or partially unable 

to carry out its obligations under this Agreement, then such party shall give written notice 

of the full particulars of such force majeure to the other party within ten (10) days after the 

occurrence thereof. The obligations of the party giving such notice, to the extent effected 

by the force majeure, shall be suspended during the continuance of the inability claimed, 

except as hereinafter provided, but for no longer period, and the party shall endeavor to 

remove or overcome such inability with all reasonable dispatch. 

11.03. It is understood and agreed that the settlement of strikes and lockouts shall be entirely 

within the discretion of the party having the difficulty, and that the above requirement that 

any Force Majeure shall be remedied with all reasonable dispatch shall not require that the 

settlement be unfavorable in the judgment of the party having the difficulty. 

NOTICES 

12.01. Any notice to be given hereunder by any party to another party shall be in writing and may 

be affected by personal delivery or by sending said notices by registered or certified mail, 

return receipt requested, to the address set forth below. Notice shall be deemed given when 

deposited with the United States Postal Service with sufficient postage affixed. 

 Any notice mailed to the SUD shall be addressed: 

 Agua Special Utility District 

P.O. Box 4379 

Mission, TX 78572 

 

            Attn: General Manager 

  

 Any notice mailed to the APPLICANT shall be addressed:  

 

 Liberty Landing Opportunity Zone Fund, LLC 

 8117 Sutherland Ln.  

 Plano, Texas 75025 

  



18 

 

 Any party may change the address for notice to it by giving notice of such change in 

accordance with the provisions of this section. 

ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

13.01. This Agreement, together with any exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire 

agreement between Parties hereto, and may not be amended except by a writing signed by 

all Parties and dated subsequent to the date hereof. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

14.01. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of the complete execution hereof by all 

Parties as indicated below. 

TEXAS LAW GOVERNS 

 

15.01. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

State of Texas and shall be performable in Hidalgo County, Texas. Venue shall lie 

exclusively in Hidalgo County, Texas. 

TIME OF THE ESSENCE AND TERM 

16.01. It is acknowledged and agreed by the Parties that time is of the essence in the performance 

of this Agreement. 

16.02. This Agreement will remain in effect so long as APPLICANT is receiving service from the 

SUD. 

16.03. Notwithstanding paragraph 16.02 herein, this Agreement will terminate before the Project 

is connected to and receiving water from the SUD under the following circumstances or 

conditions: 

 a. Construction of the Project must commence within thirty (30) days following the 

effective date of this Agreement, and the construction of the Project must be 



19 

 

completed within one hundred and eighty (180) days of the effective date of this 

Agreement.  If either of these deadlines is not met, this Agreement will terminate 

upon receipt of written notice from the SUD that a deadline has been missed.  

APPLICANT may seek an extension of either deadline by applying to the District 

Manager of the SUD for an extension and upon a showing of good cause for the 

delay.  Such application must be filed prior to the expiration of the applicable 

deadline.  APPLICANT may be granted one extension of an additional thirty (30) 

days to commence construction or an additional one hundred and eighty (180) days 

to complete construction.  No additional extensions may be granted.  If this 

Agreement is terminated under this section, the APPLICANT will receive a refund 

of all fees paid except the service investigation fee and may reapply for service at 

such time as APPLICANT is ready to proceed with the Project.  Reapplication will 

be subject to fees in effect at the time of the reapplication. 

 b. This Agreement terminates if the plat for the Subdivision is not approved by 

Hidalgo County or by a municipality whose approval is required, or if the plat is 

substantially modified to increase the number of lots in the Subdivision or 

otherwise materially change how water service will be provided to the Subdivision. 

 c. The SUD reserves the right to terminate this Agreement if there is a material 

change to the approved Plans for the Project. 

16.04 If all of the requirements prescribed by the Agreement have been completed by the 

APPLICANT, including but not limited to those listed in Paragraph 8.01, the terms of this 

Agreement terminate upon the transfer by APPLICANT of all lots in the Subdivision to 



20 

 

another party or parties.  Paragraph 8.02 shall survive the termination of this Agreement 

under this Paragraph 16.04. 

 

EXECUTED in multiple originals and effective as of the _____ day of ______________, 2020. 

          AGUA SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

 

 

                   By:        ___________________________________ 

             President of the Board 

 

 
                                                                                                                                            

   LIBERTY LANDING SUBDIVISION 

    

                   By:       ___________________________________ 

                       

          Printed Name:  _____________________________ 

 

          Title:    ___________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

  

 



AGREEMENT REGARDING WATER SERVICE FOR THE PROPOSED 

LIBERTY LANDING SUBDIVISION 

 

PARTIES: This Agreement is by and between the Agua Special Utility District, 

(hereinafter “Utility”) and Liberty Landing Opportunity Zone Fund, LLC, the persons or entity 

proposing Liberty Landing Subdivision, in the Service area of the Utility (hereinafter 

“Subdivider”), to wit: 

 

The Utility, which supplies drinking water in the area for which water is sought by the 

Subdivider, is governed by a Board of Directors (“Board”). 

 

The Subdivider is Liberty Landing Opportunity Zone Fund, LLC, who is the owner, or 

the authorized agent of the owner, of a tract of land in Hidalgo County, Texas, that has been 

proposed to be divided into a subdivision, (the “Subdivision”) known as Liberty Landing 

Subdivision. 

 

TERMS: This Agreement is entered into in partial satisfaction of requirements 

under the Texas Water Development Board’s Economically Distressed Areas Program Model 

Subdivision Rules.  The Subdivider has prepared a plat of the Subdivision for submission to 

Hidalgo County for its approval.  The Subdivider plans to construct for the Subdivision a 

drinking water distribution system to be connected to the Utility’s public water system.  The 

Board has reviewed the plans for the Subdivision (the “Plans”) and has estimated the average 

water demand anticipated to be needed by the Subdivision under fully built-out conditions (“the 

anticipated water flow”) to be approximately 78,624 gallons daily. 

 

The Board covenants that the Utility has or will have the ability to provide the anticipated 

water flow for at least thirty years, and that it will provide that water flow.  These covenants will 

be in effect until thirty years after the plat of the Subdivision has been recorded and the 

Subdivision’s water distribution system has been connected to the Utility’s water supply system. 

 

The Subdivider covenants that the water distribution system has been constructed as 

shown in the Plans and as provided for through the plat-approval process so that the residents of 

the lots of the Subdivision may receive drinking water service from the Utility.  Upon 

completion of the water distribution system and upon its approval and acceptance by the Board, 

the Subdivider will convey to the Utility all right and title to the water distribution system. 

 

The Subdivider has paid the Utility the sum of $191,604.80 or its equivalent in deeds and 

conveyance of groundwater and drilling rights, which sum represents the total costs of water 

meters, water rights acquisition fees, and all other fees associated with connecting the individual 

lots in the Subdivision to the Utility’s water supply system. 

 

The above provisions notwithstanding, this Agreement shall no longer be in effect if the 

plat of the Subdivision is not approved by Hidalgo County or by a municipality whose approval 

is required. 

 



 2 

By affixing his signature to this Agreement, the Undersigned warrants that he is 

authorized to sign this Agreement on behalf of the Utility.  By affixing his or her signature to this 

Agreement, the person signing for the Subdivider warrants that he or she is authorized to sign 

this Agreement on behalf of the Subdivider. 

 

This Agreement is effective on ____________________, 2020. 

 

AGUA SPECIAL UTILITY DISTRICT 

 

 

By:        

Printed Name:       

Office or Position:      

Date:        

 

 

 

LIBERTY LANDING SUBDIVISION 

 

By:        

Printed Name:       

Office or Position:      

Date:        

 

 



 
 
 

 

ITEM 4. 
 



 Agua Special Utility 
District 

 

Memo 

To:   Jose E. “Eddie” Saenz, General Manager 

 

 

Mr. Saenz,  

 

 Pamela Perez 
 Project Manager 
 

Non-Standard Service Agreement and 30 Year Letter   

From: Pamela Perez, Project Manager 

Cc:  Cynthia Villarreal, Executive Assistant  

Date:  September 11, 2020 

Re:  Divina Misericordia Subdivision  

The developer for Divina Misericordia Subdivision, Mrs. Lourdes Montemayor, has complied with 
Agua SUD requirements in order to proceed with NSSA contract. Their information was been 

submitted to the District’s Attorney and the NSSA and 30-year letter are being prepare. Please 

add this item to the September 14, 2020 agenda for approval.  



1 

NON-STANDARD SERVICE AGREEMENT 

 

 This Non-Standard Service Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 

between Agua Special Utility District (“the SUD”), a special utility district created and operating 

under Chapter 7201 of the District Local Laws Code and under Chapter 65 of the Texas Water 

Code, and  Lourdes Montemayor (“APPLICANT”) located in Hidalgo County, Texas. 

RECITALS 

 This Agreement is intended to satisfy the requirements of the Texas Water Development 

Board’s Economically Distressed Areas Program Model Subdivision Rules, as described in 31 

Texas Administrative Code §364.32. 

 The SUD is a utility which supplies drinking water in the area for which water is sought 

by APPLICANT and is governed by a Board of Directors.  APPLICANT is the owner of  tracts 

of land in Hidalgo County, Texas, that have been proposed to be divided into a subdivision 

known as Divina Misericordia Subdivision, within, Hidalgo County, Texas (“Subdivision” or 

“Project”), consisting of 7 lots which will be a residential development encompassing 2.36- acres 

of land owned by the APPLICANT.  The 7 Lots are being used for residential use, and is to 

connect an 8-inch waterline via an existing 8-inch waterline along the North side of the right-of-

way of Western Palm Road.  Residential lots will connect via 15-ft Exclusive Agua SUD 

Easements, and provide 1-inch water service connections with a ¾-inch water meter to each 

residential lot.  

 The SUD and APPLICANT desire to enter into an agreement at the request of 

APPLICANT to address water service from the SUD to APPLICANT.  APPLICANT intends to 

build the Subdivision, which is within the SUD’s Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

(“CCN”).  APPLICANT has requested service and the SUD has investigated service 



2 

requirements for APPLICANT.  The SUD, through its consulting engineer, has prepared a 

Service Investigation Report (“SIR”) dated July 8, 2020.  The SIR is attached hereto and 

incorporated herein for all purposes.  This Agreement sets forth the requirements for the design, 

bidding, construction and inspection of facilities and the acquisition of easements necessary to 

provide water to APPLICANT.   

 In consideration of the foregoing, of the mutual benefits, covenants and agreements 

expressed herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged, the SUD and APPLICANT agree as follows: 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

1.01. The Project includes all water pipes, lines, meters, valves, facilities, easements and other 

infrastructure (water infrastructure and facilities) to provide water service to 

APPLICANT.  APPLICANT will construct at its cost all water infrastructure and 

facilities and obtain all easements that are required and reasonably necessary to serve the 

Project, including, but not limited to, the facilities and easements described in Sections A 

and D of the SIR.  APPLICANT will pay the cost of construction for improvements to 

the SUD’s production, treatment, and storage facilities necessary to provide service to 

APPLICANT’S Subdivision. 

1.02. Being a 2.36 tract of land out of Lot 4, Block 4, amended map of the Goodwin Tract 

Subdivisions No. 1 and No. 2, as described in Volume 8, Pages 2A & 3, Hidalgo County 

Map Records.  The 7 Lots of the project will be developed for Residential use. Lot 1 has 

an existing water service and water meter and the remaining 6 lots (or 6 living unit 

equivalents (7 LUEs).   APPLICANT is required to comply with all requirements set out 

in Section D of the SIR.  The lot will be serviced with single service water connections 



3 

and 1-inch waterlines, with all of the related appurtenances as outlined in the SUD’s 

Standards Manual.    

1.03. This development is to provide sanitary sewer service via an existing 6-inch sanitary 

sewer line running East/West along the South side of Royola Street, Lot 1 has an existing 

on-site sewage facilities (OSSF), which will be decommissioned and connected to the 

sanitary sewer collection system. Lots 1, 2, 3, and 6 already have an existing sanitary 

sewer service connection. Therefore, the remaining three (3) lots will be connected via 4-

inch sanitary sewer service connections. APPLICANT is responsible for the acquisition 

of any easements necessary to comply with these requirements.  

1.04. The Project is located along the North side of Royola Street, and approximately 295-ft 

West of Green Road in Palmview, Texas.  

DESIGN OF FACILITIES 

2.01. APPLICANT’S engineer will prepare the design, construction plans and specifications, 

and supporting documentation for the water infrastructure and facilities associated with 

the Project in consultation and coordination with the SUD’s engineer, and subject to the 

SUD’s review and approval.  APPLICANT will provide the SUD three sets of 

preliminary design plans.  The SUD will review and comment on the plans, and 

APPLICANT will amend the plans at the request and to the satisfaction of the SUD.  All 

improvements shall be designed and constructed in accordance with the SUD and TCEQ 

standards.  All facilities and infrastructure will comply with TCEQ rules and regulations.  

No construction shall commence until the SUD has reviewed and approved plans. 

2.02. APPLICANT will use the plans approved by the SUD to develop construction-ready 

plans which will be submitted to the SUD for final review, revision and approval.  Once 




